
 
 

 
Addenbrooke House   Ironmasters Way    Telford   TF3 4NT 

 

Continued… 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

Date Tuesday, 28 April 2020 Time 10.00 am 

Venue Audio Conference Meeting 

 

Enquiries Regarding this Agenda 

Democratic Services Jayne Clarke / Maria Altunel 01952 383205 / 380407 

Media Enquiries Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

Lead Officer Valerie Hulme – Development Management 
Service Delivery Manager 

01952 384130 

 

Committee Membership: Councillors N A Dugmore, I T W Fletcher, A S Jhawar, J Jones, J Loveridge, 
K Middleton, P J Scott, C F Smith (Chair) and C R Turley 

  
Substitutes: Councillors G H Cook, V A Fletcher, R T Kiernan, R Mehta, G L Offland, 

K S Sahota, W L Tomlinson and D R W White 

 
Scan the code with your smartphone to view this agenda and reports online at 
www.telford.gov.uk/meetings  

 
 

AGENDA 
1.   Appointment of Vice-Chair 

 
  

2.   Apologies for Absence 
 

  

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

4.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting Appendix A 3 - 8 
 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting. 

 
  

5.   Deferred/Withdrawn Applications 
 

  

6.   Planning Applications for Determination Appendix B 9 - 10 
 Please note that the order in which applications are heard may be 

changed at the meeting.  If Members have queries about any of the 
applications, they are requested to raise them with the relevant 
Planning Officer prior to the Committee meeting. 
 

  

6.1.   TWC/2019/1031 - Site of Royston, 68 Rosecroft, 9 & 70 Park Appendix C 11 - 32 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

Road/St Leonards Road, Malinslee, Telford, Shrosphire 
6.2.   TWC/2020/0087 - Site of former Rose and Crown PH, Sunnyside 

Road, Ketley Bank, Telford, Shropshire 
Appendix D 33 - 50 

  

Page 2



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held on Wednesday, 11 

March 2020 at 6.00 pm in Meeting Rooms G3/4, Addenbrooke House, 
Ironmasters Way, Telford, TF3 4NT 

 
 
Present: Councillors N A Dugmore, I T W Fletcher, A S Jhawar, R Mehta, 
K Middleton, C F Smith (Chair) and C R Turley 
 
In Attendance:  
 
Apologies: Councillors J Jones, J Loveridge and P J Scott 
 
PC63 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Chris Turley declared non-pecuniary interests in planning applications 
TWC2019/0939 and TWC/2019/0940 and informed members he is a member 
of the Ironbridge Gorge World Heritage Site Steering Group and the 
Ironbridge Gorge Museum Trust. He is also the Company Director and 
Trustee of the Severn Gorge Countryside Trust.  
 
Cllr Ian Fletcher declared and interest in planning application TWC/2019/0724 
as he is Ward Councillor for this area and his wife, Cllr Veronica Fletcher is 
registered to speak against this application. Cllr Fletcher assured members 
that he has not taken part in any discussions regarding the application and 
therefore has not made up his mind and will wait until everything is heard 
before doing so. 
 
 
PC64 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee 
held on 12 February 2020 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman 
 
PC65 Deferred/Withdrawn Applications 
 
None. 
 
PC66 Site Visits 
 
None. 
 
PC67 Planning Applications for Determination 
 
Members had received a schedule of planning applications to be determined 
by the Committee and fully considered each report.  
 
PC68 TWC/2019/0503 - Land south/west of Donnerville Drive, 

Admaston, Telford, Shropshire 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
This was an application for full planning permission for the erection of 5No. 
detached residential dwellings. The proposal also included the creation of a 
new access point, provision of garages together with an area of Public Open 
Space (POS) with a formally dedicated pedestrian footpath connecting 
Donnerville Drive with the Silkin Way. Amendments were submitted during the 
course of the planning application following submission of additional 
supporting information which included an Ecological Appraisal and a Heritage 
Assessment. The application was also supported by a Landscape Appraisal, 
an Arboricultural Report and a Flood Risk Assessment.  
 
Members spoke favourably regarding the application and welcomed the green 
network enhancements. 
 
On being put to the vote it was unanimously: 
 
RESOLVED – that That in respect of Planning application 
TWC/2019/0503 that delegated authority be granted to the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager to grant full planning permission 
subject to the following: 
 
A) The applicant entering into a Section 106 agreement with the Local 
Planning Authority (terms to be agreed by the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager) relating to the following: 
 
i. A contribution of £3,000 towards the upgrading and enhancement of 
existing community play/recreation provision within close proximity of 
the site and a separate contribution of £3,000 towards the improvement 
of the nearby Bean Hill Valley Nature Reserve. 
 
B) The conditions and informatives (with authority to finalise conditions 
and reasons for approval to be delegated to Development Management 
Service Delivery Manager) set out in the update report 
 
PC69 TWC/2019/0724 - Site J (East & South of Westminster Way), 

Gatcombe Way, Priorslee, Telford, Shropshire 
 
This was an application for Site J (East & South of Westminster Way), 
Gatcombe Way, Priorslee, Telford, Shropshire. Erection of 94 dwelling 
houses, with associated garages, parking, landscaping and infrastructure. 
 
Cllr. Veronica Fletcher requested that this application be determined by 
members of planning committee, and the application was before Planning 
Committee as it was subject to a S106 legal agreement to secure affordable 
housing and financial contributions towards education, play and open space 
and highways.  
 
Cllr. Veronica Fletcher, Ward Councillor, provided a statement which spoke 
against this application. She raised concerns regarding the impact on 
highways, parking issues, loss of green space, the impact on the local 

Page 4



 

 

doctor’s surgery with patient increase, impact on schools, noise and air 
pollution. Cllr. Fletcher bought to member’s attention that the children’s 
recreation facilities closest to the proposed site would not receive the funding 
from the s106 agreement and that the funds were going towards a recreation 
facility the other side of Priorslee. This would deny the local children moving to 
the proposed development these facilities.  
 
Ms Katie Parsons, Agent, spoke in favour of the application. She explained 
that the application would create 94 new homes that had been designed with 
officers and amendments were made to address officers concerns. She noted 
there would be ample parking for cars and cycles for each home, a new bus 
stop for sustainable travel and improved surface water draining. Financial 
contributions would be made to local recreation facilities along with a traffic 
regulation order if needed.  
 
The Planning Officer informed members of the financial contributions to be 
sought. He noted that the application would provide a good mix of housing, a 
new play area in addition to improvements on the existing play area, local 
school funding and a cycle provision plan. He explained to members that a 
provisional Traffic Regulation Order was in place and double yellow lines 
would be used if needed.  
The Planning Officer informed members that the updated report clarified the 
governments Nationally Described Space Standards policy in relation to the 
application, and noted that the development could not  be built to this standard 
as it would render the scheme unviable.  
 
During the debate, members raised some concerns regarding drainage, space 
standards on all properties and S106 contributions and parking standards.  
Members were in agreement that the contributions to be made towards play 
areas should be spent on the area opposite the proposed site, as the existing 
site was too far of a walk for the potential residents to make use of.  
One member advised that if the development proposed the use of grass 
verges, these should be paved to avoid being churned up should vehicles 
park on them.  
Members questioned the education contribution and noted that the secondary 
education contribution was half the amount of the primary education.  
 
The Development Management Service Delivery Manager clarified the 
education contribution to members and explained it was set out in a Council 
adopted strategy. 
 
The Planning Officer assured members that each property had provision for 2 
parking space which complied with parking standards.  
 
Upon being put to vote, it was unanimously; 
 
RESOLVED – that in respect of planning application TWC/2019/0724 that 
delegated authority be granted to the Development Management Service 
Delivery Manager to grant planning permission subject to:  

Page 5



 

 

 A) That the application receives support, subject to Condition(s) from 
the Council’s Drainage Officers.  
 
B) The following contributions to be agreed through a S.106 Agreement: 
 
1. Highways:  
Strategic Highway Network Contribution of £79,621.29 (index linked) 
Traffic Regulation Order Contribution of £5,000 (index linked) if, within 5 
years of practical completion of the Development, it becomes necessary 
to prohibit on-street parking on Gatcombe Way. 
 
2. Education: 
The Secondary Education Contribution of £107,050 (index linked) to be 
used within 3miles of the development. 
The Primary Education Contribution of £284,547 (index linked) to be 
used within 2 miles of the development 
 
3. Recreation:  
£42,500 (index linked) as a contribution towards the provision or 
improvement of recreational facilities in the vicinity of the development 
site 
 
4. Affordable Housing: 
To provide within the Development that 25% of all Dwellings constructed 
shall be the Affordable Housing Units 
 
C) The conditions and informatives (with authority to finalise conditions 
and reasons for approval to be delegated to Development Management 
Service Delivery Manager) set out in the report and update report 
 
 
PC70 TWC/2019/0939 - Site of 4-8 Carpenters Row, Wellington 

Road, Coalbrookdale, Telford, Shropshire 
 
This was an application for site of 4-8 Carpenters Row, Wellington Road, 
Coalbrookdale, Telford. Refurbishment of existing dwellings including the 
creation of associated parking, repair of existing external doors and windows 
and marginal landscaping works. 
 
Cllr. C Healy spoke against this application. She welcomed the restoration of 
the properties and their historic features. She raised concerns regarding the 
triangle of land currently used for parking by other residents and the impact 
this would have on them if the land became privatised. She raised concerns 
on the lack of detail regarding proposed landscaping as land level changes 
would need to be looked at. Cllr. Healy recommended that the application 
should be deferred while parking and landscaping issues are resolved. 
 
The Planning Officer informed members that parking was provided opposite 
and as it was already in use as a parking facility, no additional permissions 
were needed and therefore was omitted from the application. He explained 

Page 6



 

 

that the applicant was the sole owner of the land which meant the triangle of 
land in question belonged to them. Other properties in the area were built 
within the hillside, however the weight of soil was putting pressure on property 
and so a retaining wall would be built. A retaining wall was a slight deviation of 
character, although not significant visually. With regards to landscaping, there 
would be a gravel/stone surface and low level planting. The restoration would 
be sensitive and would turn five properties into four. It was advised that 
members comment on the restoration work. 
 
Members spoke favourably regarding the proposed restoration work and 
welcomed the application to return the properties to their former state.  
 
Upon being put to vote, it was unanimously; 
 
RESOLVED - that in respect of Planning application TWC/2019/0939 that 
delegated authority be granted to the Delivery Management Service 
Delivery Manager to grant full planning permission subject to the 
conditions and informatives (with authority to finalise conditions and 
reasons for approval to be delegated to Development Management 
Service Delivery Manager) set out in the  update report. 
 
 
PC71 TWC/2019/0940 - Site of 4-8 Carpenters Row, Wellington 

Road, Coalbrookdale, Telford, Shropshire 
 
This was an application for site of 4-8 Carpenters Row, Wellington Road, 
Coalbrookdale, Telford. Refurbishment of existing dwellings including the 
creation of associated parking, repair of existing external doors and windows 
and marginal landscaping works. 
 
Cllr. C Healy spoke against this application. She welcomed the restoration of 
the properties and their historic features. She raised concerns regarding the 
triangle of land currently used for parking by other residents and the impact 
this would have on them if the land became privatised. She raised concerns 
on the lack of detail regarding proposed landscaping as land level changes 
would need to be looked at. Cllr. Healy recommended that the application 
should be deferred while parking and landscaping issues are resolved. 
 
The Planning Officer informed members that parking was provided opposite 
and as it was already in use as a parking facility, no additional permissions 
were needed and therefore was omitted from the application. He explained 
that the applicant was the sole owner of the land which meant the triangle of 
land in question belonged to them. Other properties in the area were built 
within the hillside, however the weight of soil was putting pressure on property 
and so a retaining wall would be built. A retaining wall was a slight deviation of 
character, although not significant visually. With regards to landscaping, there 
would be a gravel/stone surface and low level planting. The restoration would 
be sensitive and would turn five properties into four. It was advised that 
members comment on the restoration work. 
 

Page 7



 

 

Members spoke favourably regarding the proposed restoration work and 
welcomed the application to return the properties to their former state.  
 
Upon being put to vote, it was unanimously; 
 
RESOLVED - that in respect of Planning application TWC/2019/0939 that 
delegated authority be granted to the Delivery Management Service 
Delivery Manager to grant full planning permission subject to the 
conditions and informatives (with authority to finalise conditions and 
reasons for approval to be delegated to Development Management 
Service Delivery Manager) set out in the  update report. 
 
PC72 Update Reports 
 
The meeting ended at 6.50 pm 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date: 

 
Tuesday, 28 April 2020 

 

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS  

 

The Background Papers taken into account when considering planning applications 
on this list include all or some of the following items.  Items 1 to 4 are included on the 
file for each individual application. 
 
1. Application:  includes the application form, certificate under Section 65 of the 

Town and Country Planning Act, 1990, plans, and any further supporting 
information submitted with the application. 

 
2. Further correspondence with applicant: includes any amendments to the 

application – including any letters to the applicant/agent with respect to the 
application and any further correspondence submitted by the applicant/agent, 
together with any revised details and/or plans. 

 
3. Letters from Statutory Bodies:  includes any relevant letters to and from the 

Parish Councils, Departments of Telford & Wrekin Council, Water Authorities 
and other public bodies and societies.  

 
4. Letters from Private Individuals:  includes any relevant letters to and from 

members of the public with respect to the application, unless the writers have 
asked that their views are not reported publicly. 

 
5. Statutory Plans and Informal Policy Documents:  some or all of the following 

documents will comprise general background papers taken into account in 
considering planning applications in the administrative area of Telford and 
Wrekin (“Telford and Wrekin”) 

 
a)  Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031 (adopted 11th January 2018) 

including any Neighbourhood Plans 
b)  Telford and Wrekin Supplementary Planning Documents:  

 Design for Community Safety SPD (adopted June 2008);  

 Telecommunications Development SPD (adopted May 2009); and  

 Shop Fronts, Signage and Design Guidance in Conservation Areas 
SPD (adopted April 2012) 

c) Government Planning Guidance – National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance and Circulars 

d) Town and Country Planning legislation, case law and other planning 
decisions and articles 

 
 
6. Past decision notices and reports referred to in specific reports. 
 
7. The following additional documents (if appropriate):-  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

TWC/2019/1031  
Site of Royston 68, Rosecroft, 9 & 70 Park Road/St Leonards Road, Malinslee, Telford, 
Shropshire 
Demolition of 3no. dwellings and erection of 38no. dwellings, associated landscaping and 
creation of new access  ***REVISED DESCRIPTION***AMENDED PLANS RECEIVED***  

 
APPLICANT RECEIVED 
Living Space 16/12/2019 
 
PARISH WARD 
Great Dawley Ketley and Overdale, Malinslee and 

Dawley Bank 
 
THIS APPLICATION HAS BEEN REFERRED TO PLANNING COMMITTEE AS IT ENTAILS 
A S.106 AGREEMENT  
 
1. SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION  
 
1.1 It is recommended that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the Development 

Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT FULL PLANNING PERMISSION 
subject to Condition(s), Informative(s) and the Applicant entering into a s.106 
Agreement to secure Financial Contributions. 

 
2. SITE AND SURROUNDINGS  
 
2.1 The application site measures approximately 0.86 hectares (ha) and is situated to the 

south of Park Road and north-west of St Leonard’s Road in Malinslee which lies 
approximately 1 mile west of Telford Town Centre. The land is privately owned and 
comprises three number residential dwellings including ‘Royston’ and ‘Rosecroft’ 
accessed from Park Road and No. 70 St Leonard’s Road. 

 
2.2 To the north, south, east and west of the site are large areas of residential housing 

with intervening areas of open space and parkland. Further afield to the north and east 
of the site are a variety of uses including schools, retail parks, local shops and 
restaurants. Telford Central railway station is located within approximately 1.5 miles 
from the site. The closest bus stop to the site lies immediately to the south of the site 
along St Leonard’s Road which provides frequent connections to the Town Centre and 
the wider area. 

 
2.3 Surrounding neighbouring developments comprise predominantly two-storey 

detached properties with either brick or rendered facades and a mix of gabled and 
hipped roofs. Opposite the site is the recently completed Cambridge Close 
development where there are also a number of bungalows. 

 
2.4 The application site is made up of open grassland and private gardens and falls away 

gradually in a north-easterly direction. There are a number of hedgerows within the 
site making up the residential curtilages and a number of trees, particularly along the 
southern boundary of the site. Trees on the site are varied in maturity and quality. 
Immediately east of the site is an area of open space which is currently owned by the 
Council. 

 
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6a



 

 

 

3. PROPOSAL 
 
3.1 The application seeks Full Planning Permission for the erection of 38No. dwellings 

following the demolition of the existing 3No. residential dwellings.  The proposed 
development will deliver a fully affordable scheme (100%) comprising the following mix 
of accommodation: 

 
- 23No. 3 bed / 4 person house; 
- 9No. 2 bed / 3 person house; 
- 2No. 2 bed bungalows; 
- 4No. 1 bed / 2 person apartments. 

 
3.2 All of the bungalows and the two ground floor apartments will be built to higher 

accessibility standards – M4(2) Category 2 (Accessible and Adaptable) of Building 
Regulations and will include a level access shower. 

 
3.3 Amendments have been submitted during the course of the planning application 

reducing the scheme by 1No. dwelling whilst increasing the amount of bungalows 
being provided as well as alterations to the proposed layout to provide a better form of 
development. The application is supported by a Design, Access and Planning 
Statement, Phase 1 Habitat Survey, Drainage Design Report, Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment and a Coal Mining Risk Assessment. 

 
3.4 Vehicular access will be provided directly off Park Road with the main access road 

being adopted apart from two areas to the north-east and south-west being under 
private ownership. The development proposes pedestrian accessibility enhancements 
with the provision of a pedestrian link along the eastern boundary to the site connecting 
Park Road to the pedestrian walkway to the south at St Leonard’s Road. 

 
3.5 The current layout proposes an overall density of 44 dwellings per hectare (dph) which 

is below the average density of Malinslee (50dph as outlined in the ‘Density and net 
site area study’ of the TWLP) and comparable to the Cambridge Close development 
opposite which has a density of approximately 41dph. Each unit has private amenity 
space whilst the apartments will have access to a shared garden with communal bin 
and cycle storage. 

 
3.6 A total of 76 car parking spaces will be provided with a combination of both on-plot 

parking and communal parking areas. The level of parking proposed is in exact 
accordance with the parking standards of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan (TWLP). 
Soft landscaping will take the form of low level shrubs and trees with all planting to be 
designed to be low in maintenance whilst hardstanding will be a combination of 
tarmacadam and block paving which will help distinguish areas of adopted highway 
and privately managed roads.  Boundary treatment is proposed as garden walls where 
visible from the highway or where proposed dwellings directly overlook neighbouring 
boundaries. 

 
3.7 The application is subject to the following financial contributions: 
 

- Primary Education Contribution of £94,140; 
- Secondary Education Contribution of £40,356; 
- Recreation Contribution of £20,400 

 
 
 
4. PLANNING HISTORY  

Page 12



 

 

 

 
4.1 W93/0631 – Residential development – Outline Granted 22 October 1993 
 
4.2 W96/0796 – Renewal of Outline Planning Permission W93/0631 for residential 

development – Outline Granted 09 December 1996 
 
4.3 W99/0864 – Renewal of W96/0796 Outline Planning Permission for residential 

development – Outline Granted 22 November 1999 
 
4.4 W2002/1252 – Renewal of Outline Planning Permission W99/0864 for residential 

development – Outline Granted 23 January 2003 
 
4.5 W2007/0995 – Demolition of 3No. dwellings and erection of 59No. dwellings, creation 

of new vehicular/pedestrian access and construction of a new estate road – Withdrawn 
 
4.6 TWC/2018/0027 – Erection of 49No. dwellings, 2No. pumping stations, creation of a 

new vehicular and pedestrian access and associated landscape works following the 
demolition of 3No. dwellings and associated outbuildings – Withdrawn 

 
5. RELEVANT POLICY DOCUMENTS  
 
5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
5.2 Telford and Wrekin Local Plan (TWLP) 2011-2031     
 
6. NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS  
 
6.1 The application has been subject to two rounds of public consultation, the first of which 

raised 12 objections and the second 11 objections and 1 letter making a series of 
comments. The issues raised have been summarised below:   

 
- Development proposal represents overdevelopment of the site; 
- Inadequate parking; 
- Concerns relating to highway and pedestrian safety; 
- Existing levels of traffic will be exacerbated by the proposed development; 
- Adverse impact on living conditions for existing residents as a result of a loss of 

daylight and privacy; 
- Lack of space for play and recreation activities; 
- Introduction of flats is totally out of character for the area; 
- Significant amount of building in Telford – is there a requirement for more housing 

in this location; 
- Adverse impact on local wildlife as a result of loss of trees and hedges; 
- Existing roads are not currently fit for purpose – adding more houses will increase 

the pressures on the local road network; 
- Loss of open space/green areas for existing residents; 
- Existing infrastructure is already at full capacity / overprescribed – the proposed 

development will result in additional pressure; 
- Development appears to promote maximum profit for developers over quality and 

living standards for residents; 
- Design & Access Statement contains a number of errors and misconceptions; 
- Clarification is required in relation to existing/proposed boundary treatment; 
- Concerns regarding land stability; 
- Adverse impact on local community. 

7. STATUTORY REPRESENTATIONS  
 

Page 13



 

 

 

7.1 Great Dawley Parish Council: No comments received. 
 
7.2 Highways: Support subject to Condition(s): 
 

- Car parking to be provided prior to occupation; 
- Provision of visibility splays (2.4 x 43 metres); 
- Details of the design and construction of any new roads, footways, accesses and 

street lighting; 
- Scheme of works to provide pedestrian footways to connect to the existing 

pedestrian network. 
 
7.3 Drainage: Support subject to Condition(s): 
  

- Scheme of foul and surface water drainage. 
 
7.4 The Coal Authority: No Objection. 
 
7.5 Ecology: Support subject to Condition(s): 
 

- Erection of artificial nesting/roosting boxes; 
- Lighting Plan; 
- Informatives – bats, nesting wild birds, removal of Schedule 9 species. 

 
7.6 Arboriculture: Comment, requiring following Condition(s): 
 

- Tree protection plan; 
- Tree replacement scheme. 

 
7.7 Healthy Spaces: Comment: 
 

- Developer Contributions of £600 per 2 bed+ property (total of £20,400) towards 
upgrading/enhancing the Malinslee Playing Field; 

- Include Condition requiring a long term Landscape Management Plan. 
 
7.8 Affordable Housing: Comment: 
 

- There is a continuing under supply of affordable homes in Telford & Wrekin, 
particularly homes for rent. The most recent Strategic Housing Market Assessment 
(SHMA) for the borough identified an annual shortfall of around 665 affordable 
homes, with gross new supply currently around half of this. There is also a 
significant and growing need for more accessible homes to meet the housing 
needs of vulnerable and older people in the borough. The proposed development 
will help address these existing shortfalls. 

 
7.9 Education: Comment: 
 

- Developer contributions of £94,140 and £40,356 towards Primary and Secondary 
education works respectively  

 
7.10 West Mercia Police: Comment: 
 

- The Applicant should aim to achieve the Secured by Design (SbD) award status 
for this development 

7.11 Shropshire Fire Service: Comment: 
 

Page 14



 

 

 

- Include Fire Authority Informative. 
 
8. APPRAISAL  
 
8.1 Having regard to the development plan policies and other material planning 

considerations, including comments received during the consultation process, the 
planning application raises the following main issues: 

 

 Principle of Development;  

 Access, Scale and Layout; 

 Character & Appearance; 

 Living Conditions of Existing and Future Residents; 

 Ecology and Trees; 

 Flood Risk and Drainage; 

 Planning Obligations. 
 

Principle of Development 
 
8.2 Section 38(6) of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning 

applications must be determined in accordance with the adopted development plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this instance, the development 
plan consists of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan (TWLP). The National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) sets out policy guidance at a national level and is a material 
consideration in planning decisions. 

 
8.3 At a local level, Policy SP1 confirms that Telford will be the principal focus for growth 

to meet the borough’s housing and employment needs. The site is located within the 
Telford urban area and is therefore suitable in principle for residential development, 
subject to overcoming all relevant technical considerations. In addition, Policy SP4 sets 
out a presumption in favour of sustainable development, reflecting national guidance 
in the NPPF. 

 
 Access, Scale & Layout 
 
8.4 Following the demolition of the existing 3No. dwellings it is proposed to create a new 

single access to the north-western corner of the site from Park Road where the 
requisite visibility splays can be achieved. The access road will be provided to fully 
adoptable standards being 5.5 metres wide with 2 metres wide pedestrian footpaths. 
Two private access roads have been provided within the site. The development 
proposes pedestrian accessibility enhancements with the provision of a pedestrian link 
along the eastern boundary to the site connecting Park Road to the pedestrian 
walkway to the south at St Leonard’s Road. 

 
8.5 The application originally sought approval for 39No. dwellings however this has since 

been reduced to 38No. dwellings as part of number of amendments which were 
requested by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The scheme proposes a mix of house 
types as specified in para. 3.1 including detached, semi-detached and terraced two-
storey dwellings, single and 1.5-storey bungalows and 1-bed apartments. 

 
8.6 The proposal represents an overall density of 44 dwellings per hectare (dph) which is 

below the average density of Malinslee (50dph as outlined in the ‘Density and net site 
area study’ of the TWLP) and comparable to the Cambridge Close development 
opposite which has a density of approximately 41dph.  Para. 122 of the NPPF requires 
planning decisions to make ‘efficient use of land’ and therefore taking the above in to 

Page 15



 

 

 

consideration, the scale of development is considered to be acceptable and compliant 
with planning policy. 

 
8.7 A total of 76 car parking spaces will be provided with a combination of both on-plot 

parking and communal parking areas.  The level of parking proposed is in exact 
accordance with the Parking Standards of the TWLP.  24No. Plots have two 
designated car parking spaces, 2No. Plots have 3 designated car parking spaces 
whilst 12No. Plots have 1 designated Car Parking Spaces which are then supported 
by an additional 10No. Visitor Spaces. Taking the above in to consideration the LPA is 
satisfied that the application meets the required parking requirements. 

 
 Character and Appearance  
 
8.8 Policy BE1 of the TWLP provides guidance to assess whether or not proposals are of 

an appropriate design quality and relate positively to their context. It advises the 
Council to assess proposed development in relation to its scale, massing, form, 
density, orientation and layout, proportions, materials, landscape  elements, access, 
parking and spatial quality. This policy advises the Council to support development 
which will respect and respond positively to its context, demonstrating an integrated 
design approach and respecting its landscape setting. 

 
8.9 No single dominant feature is inherent in the local context and a multitude of materials, 

scales and forms are evident. Accordingly, the main concept for the appearance of the 
proposed dwellings is to provide a scheme that has a distinctive character promoting 
contemporary design solutions. Corner plots will be dual-aspect and a varied building 
line will be adopted throughout. The development will be restricted to a maximum of 
two storeys in height, beneath simple pitched roofs and front canopies. Finishing 
materials comprise a mixture of plain tiles, red brick and cladding although final 
specifications are to be agreed. Taking the above in to consideration and subject to 
Condition(s) relating to finishes, boundary treatments and landscaping, officers are 
satisfied that the development will not detract from the character and appearance of 
the area thus complying with Policy BE1. 

 
 Living Conditions of Existing and Future Residents 
 
8.10 Residential properties border many of the site boundaries in particular to the south and 

west. The site layout predominantly achieves separation distances of 20 metres and 
above between existing and proposed dwellings. There are exceptions such as Plot 7 
which will be positioned approximately 12 metres away from neighbouring dwellings to 
the west off St Christopher’s Way however this plot will comprise a semi-detached 
bungalow which will be side on to these neighbouring properties. Subject to provision 
of suitable boundary treatment, officers are satisfied that there will be no significant 
loss of privacy or harm to the amenities of existing residents. 

 
8.11 Where rear gardens back on to boundaries of neighbouring properties, the gardens 

are a minimum of 10 metres in length. There are a few plots to the south where the 
rear gardens are slightly shorter however there is an area of public open space with a 
line of semi-mature trees to ensure no loss of privacy. In addition, whilst some gardens, 
particularly to the south of the development site, are less than 10 metres in length, the 
overall sizeable area of these gardens are in accordance with the standards that the 
Council currently adhere with. 

 
8.12 In terms of living conditions for future residents, in particular conformity to the 

Nationally Described Space Standards (NDSS), the developer has submitted revised 
house types during the course of the planning application to ensure that all two storey 

Page 16



 

 

 

dwellings and bungalows adhere to these standards, in accordance with Policy HO4 
of the TWLP. As such, 34No. Units (out of 38No.) comply with the NDSS. The 
remaining 4No. Units that are not fully compliant are the 4No. Apartments. Two of 
these Apartments achieve 92% compliance and the other two Apartments achieve 
93.4% compliance. Whilst the 4No. Apartments are not fully compliant with the NDSS; 
these are all very marginal under provisions and in light of other compliant house types 
which are in full compliance with the standards and the submission of a confidential 
viability appraisal, it is considered that on balance the proposal is considered to be 
acceptable in terms of space standards. 

 
 Highways  
 
8.13 The proposed development will likely generate around 25 two-way trips within the AM 

and PM network peak hours (0800-0900 & 1700-1800), which equates to 
approximately 1 vehicular trip every 2 minutes associated with the site within the 
network peak hours. In this regard, the Local Highways Authority has raised no 
objections. 

 
8.14 The scheme will include works to provide a footway along the site frontage which will 

connect to existing pedestrian footway immediately to the west and to the PRoW along 
the eastern boundary of the site; the PRoW itself will be upgraded to a tarmacked 
footpath with a dropped crossing point provided to link to the existing footway on St. 
Leonards Close. These works will be conditioned as part of any subsequent planning 
approval. 

 
8.15 In regards to provision of car parking, based upon the breakdown of dwellings provided 

and with reference to the Local Plan parking standards for a Suburban location, the 
proposed development would require 76 car parking spaces. A total of 76 car parking 
spaces will be provided with a combination of both on-plot parking and communal 
parking areas. The level of parking proposed is in exact accordance with the parking 
standards of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan (TWLP). 

 
8.16 The Local Highways Authority has considered the proposals against the relevant 

TWLP policies and have offered support for the development subject to the inclusion 
of Condition(s) as detailed above. 

 
 Ecology and Trees  
 
8.17 The Application is supported by an Ecology Survey, dated September 2019.  The 

Report advises that a daytime bat assessment of all buildings on site to be demolished 
was carried out and no further bat surveys are required and recommends a ‘soft 
demolition’ approach of all buildings as a precaution.  Further recommendations are 
made including enhancement of biodiversity and retention of as many trees as 
possible, particularly on the southern boundary and where trees are to be removed for 
a tree replacement scheme to be conditioned. No further ecological investigations 
were deemed appropriate. The Council’s Ecologist has assessed the report and offer 
support for the proposals subject to a number of conditions as detailed above. 

 
8.18 An Arboricultural Impact Assessment also accompanies the application (dated March 

2020). This Report confirms that in order to facilitate the proposed development, 5No. 
individual trees, 9No. groups of trees and 5No. hedgerows will need to be removed 
from across the entire site.  14No. individual trees and 3No. groups of trees are to be 
retained. Whilst it is somewhat regrettable, none of these trees are protected by Tree 
Preservation Orders and their removal is required to accommodate the development. 
The report recommends that a tree replacement scheme be considered together with 

Page 17



 

 

 

root protection measures and erection of protective tree fencing. Officers consider 
these appropriate and will include conditions accordingly. 

 
8.19 Subject to the inclusion of conditions as detailed above, there is no reason why the 

proposed development cannot comply with Policies NE1 and NE2 of the TWLP. 
 
 Flood Risk & Drainage  
 
8.20 The application is accompanied by a Drainage Strategy which confirms that the site is 

not at risk of fluvial flood risk. It is proposed that foul drainage will be connected to the 
Severn Trent Water combined sewer located north-east of the site. Surface water 
drainage will be provided in a new below ground gravity sewer constructed within the 
proposed access road connecting into the existing Severn Trent Water sewers within 
Cambridge Close. Surplus flows are to be attenuated using both cellular attenuation 
and oversized pipes. 

 
8.21 The Council’s Drainage Engineers have assessed the supporting information and have 

raised no objections subject to Condition(s). Accordingly the proposal is considered 
compliant with policy ER12 of the TWLP. 

 
 Planning Obligations 
 
8.22 The proposed development meets the requirement to provide Developer Contributions 

as detailed below.   
 
8.23 Education – Local Plan Policy COM1 recognises that new housing development will 

generate additional demands upon existing levels of education provision. The 
application meets the trigger to provide a Financial Contribution of £134,496 towards 
education facilities in the vicinity of the development. £94,140 will go towards Primary 
Education facilities and £40,356 will go towards Secondary Education facilities.  

 
8.24 Children’s Play/Recreation – Local Plan Policy NE4 requires that the development 

provides a contribution towards the enhancement of Public Open Space (POS).  The 
Council’s Healthy Spaces Officer has confirmed the application generates a 
contribution of £20,400 towards the upgrade of the local Malinslee Playing Field.   

 
8.25 In determining the required planning obligations on this specific application the 

following three tests as set out in the CIL Regulations (2010), in particular Regulation 
122, have been applied to ensure that the application is treated on its own merits: 

 
a)   necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
b)   directly related to the development; 
c)   fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 
8.26 It is considered that the financial contributions required for this application meet the 

relevant tests. The Applicant has agreed to enter in to a s.106 Agreement with the 
Council to secure these contributions and it is understood that this agreement is 
nearing completion. 

 
 
 
 Other Matters  
 
8.27 The Local Planning Authority acknowledges all representations received from local 

residents. Many residents are concerned with regards the potential impact of 

Page 18



 

 

 

development on the local highway network and also pedestrian safety. The Local 
Highways Authority has considered the development proposals and have raised no 
objections subject to the inclusion of Condition(s) as detailed above. The proposed 
access to the site achieves the requisite visibility splays and the level on parking 
provided is in accordance with the guidance as set out in the TWLP. Other issues 
relating to the scale of development, suitability of flats and the potential impact of the 
development on wildlife and trees have been discussed above. Subject to the inclusion 
of a number of conditions the issues raised can be satisfactorily addressed. 

 
9. CONCLUSIONS 
 
9.1 The application site is located within the urban boundary of Telford & Wrekin and within 

an established residential area. The site has been subject to a number of previous 
planning approvals between 1993 and 2003 although these permission have since 
lapsed. In accordance with Policies SP1 and SP4 of the TWLP, the principle of 
residential development on this site remains acceptable. 

 
9.2 The proposal has been designed to a high standard using a mixed palette of materials, 

has been laid out satisfactorily and can be accommodated by the surrounding 
highways network. The proposal will not adversely affect European Protected Species 
or wildlife habitats and enhancement can be provided through conditions. The proposal 
generates the requirement for financial contributions towards play area provision and 
education and the scheme will deliver 38No. new dwellings allocated for affordable 
housing. 

 
9.3 There are no technical issues that would prevent the development from proceeding 

and no issues that cannot be mitigated against through the use of conditions. 
Accordingly it is considered that the proposal represents a sustainable form of 
development which complies with the National Planning Policy Framework, together 
with relevant policies within the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan. 

 
10. RECOMMENDATION  
 
10.1 Based on the conclusions above, the recommendation to the Planning Committee on 

this application is that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the Development 
Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject 
to the following: 

 
A) The applicant/landowners entering into a Section 106 Agreement with the Local 

Planning Authority (subject to indexation from the date of committee with terms 
to be agreed by the Development Management Service Delivery Manager) 
relating to 

  
i) Primary Education Contribution of £94,140 
ii) Secondary Education Contribution of £40,356 
iii) Children’s Play/Recreation contribution of £20,400 
iv)  Affordable Housing to be provided at 100%   

 
B) The following conditions (with authority to finalise conditions and reasons for 

approval to be delegated to Development Management Service Delivery 
Manager):- 
  
1. Time limit – Full (3-years)  
2. Material Samples  
3. Construction Detail – New Roads 

Page 19



 

 

 

4. Off-site Highway Works – Footpath  
5. Foul and Surface Water Drainage 
6. Landscape Management Plan 
7. Site Environmental Management Plan  
8. Tree Protection  
9. Parking, Loading, Unloading and Turning 
10. Visibility Splays 
11. Windows – White uPVC 
12. External Lighting Plan 
13. Erection of Artificial Nesting/Roosting Boxes  
14. Approved Plans 
15. Removal of Permitted Development Rights 

 
 

 
 

Page 20



P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



A

A

B

B
C

C

D

D

E

E

ELEVATION E-E

ELEVATION D-D

ELEVATION C-C

ELEVATION B-B

ELEVATION A-A

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



2
0

Royston

10

Dene

P

R

I

N

C

E

43

194.6m

1
6

8

P

A

R

K

 

R

O

A

D

55

1
9

1
4

4
2

1

3
6

4

Woodlea

7

51

C

R

R

O

Y

A

L

 

W

A

Y

P

a

t

h

 

(

u

m

)

7
0

196.1m

S
T

 
L
E

O
N

A
R

D
'
S

 
R

O
A

D

3

133

50

3

Chellow

A

N

D

R

E

W

4
6

Rosecroft

9

6

138

2
8

Birmingham Office   28 Pickford Street, Digbeth, Birmingham, B5 5QH   T. 0121 633 0000   F. 0121 633 0300   E. design@bm3.co.uk

Drawn by

Drawing

CheckedScale Dated Job No. Drawing No. RevisionCiSfb Element

Project Client

Revision Date By ChkdNotes

Copyright in this drawing remains the property

of BM3 Architecture Limited.

Do not scale this drawing.

Work to figured dimensions only.

Contractors and consultants are to advise

BM3 Architecture Limited of any discrepancies.

̶

̶

̶

Park Road 

Telford

Site Layout Plan

1:1250 19.12.17 70153 Ai FEASIBILITY AD100

Westleigh

Partnerships Ltd

A Revised to client's comments       05.01.18        RS   AI

Page 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

TWC/2020/0087  
Site of former Rose and Crown PH, Sunnyside Road, Ketley Bank, Telford, Shropshire 
Erection of 1no. dwelling with associated parking, amenity land and access  

 
APPLICANT RECEIVED 
Oliver Hardy Homes Ltd 30/01/2020 
 
PARISH WARD 
Oakengates Oakengates and Ketley Bank 

 
THIS APPLICATION HAS BEEN CALLED TO COMMITTEE AT THE REQUEST OF 

OAKENGATES TOWN COUNCIL 

 
1. SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION  
 
1.1 It is recommended that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the Development 

Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT FULL PLANNING PERMISSION 
subject to Condition(s), Informative(s). 

 
2. SITE AND SURROUNDINGS  
 
2.1 The application site is located within Ketley Bank, a Parish within the urban area of the 

borough, approximately 1 mile from the Market Town of Wellington and approximately 

2.5 miles from Telford’s Town Centre District. 

 

2.2 The application site is situated on Sunnyside Road, just off Holyhead Road. The site 

is situated between the property Sunny Bungalow and the site of the former Rose & 

Crown Public House which is now vacant and three dwellings are under construction 

on the Car Park. The site is situated south of the former Rose & Crown on an elevated 

section of land above the former Car Park. 

 

2.3 The site is designated as Green Network within the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan. 

 

2.4 A previous application was submitted on the site in 2019 for the erection of 1No. 

dwelling. The proposed dwelling was two-storey in form and concern was raised by 

Officers regarding its potential to be overbearing. The application was subsequently 

withdrawn. 

 

3. APPLICATION DETAILS 
 

3.1 The application is a Full Planning Application for the erection of 1No. Dwelling in the 

form of a dormer bungalow. The bungalow has been designed to be in keeping with 

the other properties in the vicinity. 

 

3.2 The access would be directly off Sunnyside Road, adjacent to the accesses for 3No. 

new properties under construction, alongside the access to Sunny Bungalow. 

 

3.3 The site would have a terrace platformed garden due to the topography of the land, 

with a patio area and a low maintenance terraced landscaped area. 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6b



 

 

 

4. PLANNING HISTORY  
 

4.1 TWC/2019/0730 - Erection of 1No. dwelling with associated parking, amenity land and 

access *****Amended Red Line Boundary Plan***** Withdrawn: 11 December 2019 

 

5. RELEVANT POLICY DOCUMENTS 
 

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 

5.2 Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031: 

 

SP1: Telford  

SP4: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

C3: Impact of the Development on Highways 

NE1: Biodiversity & Geodiversity  

NE2: Trees, Hedgerows and Woodlands 

NE6: Green Network 

ER11: Flood Risk Management  

ER12: Sewerage Systems and Water Quality 

 

6. NEIGHBOUR REPRESENTATIONS 
 

6.1 Six neighbouring properties have been formally consulted on the proposal and the 

Local Planning Authority have received letters of objection raising the following 

material planning concerns: 

 

- Lack of visibility from access point; 

- Increase in traffic on a narrow road; 

- No footpath for pedestrians; 

- Developers applying for permission in phases to enhance profit; 

- Overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring dwellings; 

- Loss of green space and biodiversity; 

- Loss of green space impacting the character of the area; 

- Additional pressure on services within the street; 

- Boundary disputes and inclusion of a neighbour’s land within the red line boundary; 

- Overdevelopment of the site; 

- Concerns regarding highway safety and access for emergency vehicles.  

 

7. STATUTORY REPRESENTATIONS 
 

7.1 Oakengates Town Council: Object based on a number of issues which include: 

 

- Overdevelopment of the site; 

- Concerns over access and egress; 

- Removal of trees during application process and prior to permission being 

granted; 

- Loss of Green Network land and character of the area; 

- Impact upon neighbouring properties. 

Page 34



 

 

 

 

The Town Council has requested that the application be heard at Planning Committee. 

 

7.2 Highways: Support subject to Condition(s): 

 

- Prior to the development being brought into use, visibility splays shall be 

provided; 

- Parking areas to be provided, laid out, hard surfaced and drainage prior to 

occupation of the development; 

- Prior to the occupation of the development, the access drive shall be surfaced 

in a bound material. 

 

7.3 Drainage: Support subject to Condition(s): 

 

- A scheme of foul and surface water drainage should be submitted prior to 

commencement of development. 

 

7.4 Shropshire Fire Service: Comment: 

 

- As part of the planning process, consideration should be given to the 

information contained within Shropshire Fire and Rescue Service’s ‘Fire Safety 

Guidance for Commercial and Domestic Planning Applications’ document. 

 

7.5 The Coal Authority: Support subject to Condition(s): 

 

- Stabilisation works to take place prior to development commencing. 

 

7.6 Arboriculture: 

 

- Landscaping plan should be submitted prior to the commencement of 

development; 

- Tree replacement plan should be submitted prior to commencement; 

- Clarification sought over the ownership of an existing hedge and protection 

required for the hedge. 

 

7.7 Ecology: Support subject to Condition(s): 

 

- A lighting plan should be submitted prior to occupation; 

- Details of artificial nesting/roosting boxes should be submitted prior to 

occupation. 

 

 

 

 

8. APPRAISAL 
 

Page 35



 

 

 

8.1 Having regard to the Development Plan Policy and other material considerations 

including comments received during the consultation process, the planning application 

raises the following main issues: 

 

 Principle of Development & Green Network  

 Density, Layout, Scale & Design  

 Highways, Access & Parking 

 Impact on the Living Conditions of Neighbours 

 Other Matters 

 

Principle of Development 

 

8.2 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Act (2004) states that applications for 

planning permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan, 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

8.3 The proposal is to erect 1No. Detached dwelling on currently vacant land adjacent to 

the former Rose & Crown. The application site is located within the built up area of the 

borough, as shown within the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan policies map, where the 

principle of residential development is acceptable. However, to be supported, sites 

would need to be suitably sized, appropriately located, and accessed safely in addition 

to satisfying other relevant Local Plan Policies. Any development will also need to 

satisfy the amenities of adjacent residents and land users. 

 

8.4 The site is considered to be in a sustainable location, close to shops, schools and 

services in Ketley Bank and is in accordance with Policy SP4 of the Telford & Wrekin 

Local Plan. 

 

8.5 The site is designated as Green Network within the TWLP Policies Map. The site was 

designated as Green Network under Criterion 4 within Policy NE6, as an area for 

habitats and species. The Agent has submitted a statement which addresses the 

Green Network Policy and advises how the site does not contribute to any of the 

identified functions: 

 

- The site does not provide visual amenity value; 

- It does not provide separation between built development or enhance the 

identity of the community; 

- It does not provide green land to meet recreational needs; 

- It does not comprise of any special ecological value; 

- The site has no known geological or archaeological features worth retaining 

and; 

- It does not provide open space or linkages for footpaths or cycle ways. 

 

8.6 Following an assessment of the site, Officers consider that the land’s function as Green 

Network no longer applies as it is considered that this does not meet the Criterion listed 

within Policy NE6. The Council’s Ecology Officer has reviewed the application and has 

no objection to the scheme subject to the inclusion of conditions which request 

ecological enhancements to the site. 

Page 36



 

 

 

 

8.7 It is raised as an objection by the Town Council that prior to and during the application 

process, a large number of trees on the site have been felled and the site has been 

substantially cleared. As the land is in private ownership and the trees on site were not 

subject to Tree Preservation Orders (TPO’s), the LPA could not prevent the felling of 

any trees on site. The application proposes replacement trees and landscaping and 

would be an enhancement to the site as it currently stands. On balance, the loss of the 

Green Network land has been accepted due to the improvements to the site the 

development would make, and the principle of development is acceptable for the site. 

 

Layout, Scale & Design 

 

8.8 The scheme is considered to be a modest addition to the area. The previously 

Withdrawn scheme sought permission for a two-storey dwelling which Officers 

considered would cause an overbearing impact upon the three dwellings under 

construction on the public house car park below due to its elevated position and would 

constitute an overdevelopment of the site due to its scale. The revised scheme 

proposes a noticeably smaller dormer bungalow style dwelling with a hipped roof which 

slopes away from the north and away from the three dwellings under construction 

below. The overbearing impact is considered to be significantly lessened as a result of 

the revised scheme and the overall scale and massing of the building has been 

reduced. It now sits more comfortably within the plot. 

 

8.9 Due to the size and topography of the plot, the dwelling would only benefit from a small 

area of usable garden space which would be terraced as the site has a significant 

sloping topography. A patio area would be provided around the dwelling to provide a 

level area of amenity space with a low maintenance terraced area for plants and 

shrubs. Officers consider that as the proposal is for a bungalow, on balance the amount 

of usable garden space available can be accepted. 

 

8.10 The dwelling has been designed to appear visually similar to those in the local 

vernacular. Details of materials would be requested through a condition to ensure the 

materials used for the construction would be of a high quality and would be compatible 

with those within the existing estate. 

 

8.11 Overall, on balance, the scale, density, layout and design are considered to be 

appropriate and therefore the dwelling would be an appropriate addition to the area. 

Therefore the proposal is considered to accord with Telford & Wrekin Local Plan Policy 

BE1. 

 

Highways, Access and Parking 

 

8.12 The development would be situated off Sunnyside Road adjacent to other residential 

driveways. The Council’s Highways Officer has no objection to the proposed access 

subject to the inclusion of appropriate Condition(s). 

8.13 The proposal is considered to have sufficient parking to support a two bedroom 

property within the suburban area as outlined in the TWLP parking standards and is 

therefore considered to be acceptable. 

Page 37



 

 

 

 

8.14 With regards to the concerns raised by neighbouring properties about access for 

emergency vehicles, the road is already in existence and provides access to a number 

of properties. As a result it is considered to be of a suitable size to accommodate 

access for emergency vehicles. Concerns have also been raised regarding additional 

traffic in general using Sunnyside Road however Officers consider the cumulative 

impact of one additional dwelling would not cause any significant harm in respect of 

this. 

 

8.15 As appropriate parking and access arrangements have been demonstrated, it is 

considered the proposal would comply with Policy C3 of the Telford & Wrekin Local 

Plan. 

 

Impact on the Living Conditions of Neighbours 

 

8.16 Telford & Wrekin Plan Policy BE1 states that new developments should not prejudice 

existing surrounding uses. It is considered that the development proposed would not 

result in any significant detrimental impacts upon neighbouring dwellings and therefore 

in this instance there is no concern regarding neighbour amenity. 

 

Other Matters 

 

8.17 A concern has been raised by a neighbouring property ‘Sunny Bungalow’ regarding 

land ownership, stating part of the application site as defined by the red line boundary 

is part of their curtilage. Whilst land ownership is not a planning consideration, the 

Applicant has provided the Local Planning Authority with title deeds for the application 

site which match the red line boundary shown for the site. Officers therefore consider 

the appropriate ownership certificates have been completed and submitted to 

accompany the application. Any land ownership disputes would be a civil matter 

between the parties involved. 

 

9. CONCLUSION 
 

9.1 On balance, the proposal to erect 1No. dwelling is considered acceptable. The site is 

in a sustainable location, and it has been demonstrated that the site can be adequately 

drained, accessed and appropriate parking provision is available. The scale, design 

and layout of the scheme is considered to be acceptable and would be an in-keeping 

addition to the existing development. The loss of the Green Network land has been 

accepted due to the wider benefits of the scheme, and the proposal would have no 

significant detrimental impact upon neighbouring properties. Therefore the proposal is 

considered to comply with policies of the Telford & Wrekin Local Plan, and is in 

accordance with national policies contained within the NPPF. 

 

 

 

10. DETAILED RECOMMENDATION 
 

10.1 Based on the conclusions above, the recommendation to the Planning Committee on 

Page 38



 

 

 

this application is that DELEGATED AUTHORITY be granted to the Development 

Management Service Delivery Manager to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject 

to the following Condition(s): 

 

1. Time Limit 

2. Details of Materials 

3. Foul and Surface Water Drainage 

4. Landscape Design 

5. Stabilisation Works 

6. Erection of Artificial Nesting/Roosting Boxes 

7. Lighting Plan 

8. Tree & Hedge Protection 

9. Parking, Loading, Unloading, Turning 

10. Visibility Splays 

11.  Access Drive Bound Material 

12.  Works in Accordance with the Approved Plans 

13. Removal of Permitted Development Rights 

 

 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



N

www.garethhickman.co.uk

PLANNING
JAN2020

A4

Client

Proposed New Dwelling
Land adjacent Sunnyside Rd
Ketley

Site Location Plan

Scale 1:1250@A1 Date 13/01/2020

By A. Hudson

Proj. Ref Dwg No. Rev.GHA-19-623 PL.01 07

Checked G Hickman MCIAT

1.  Do not scale this drawing
2.  All dimensions to be checked on site and any discrepancies to be reported to
Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited immediately
3.  Any indication of services is approximate only and full investigation should be carried
out on site prior to commencing the works
4.  It is the responsibility of the contractor to comply with building regulations whether
or not wholly depicted on this drawing
5.  To be read in conjunction with any specialist Structural, Geotechnical or Mechanical
design by others.

This drawing and the works depicted are the copyright of
Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited and may not be
reproduced or amended except by written permission.  No
liability is accepted for amendments made by other persons.

NOTE

Project

Drawing

The Poplars, Lightmoor, Telford, Shropshire, TF4 3QN
t) 01952 590039

info@garethhickman.co.uk

Oliver Hardy Homes LTD

141.4m

2

Works

Lenbarston

Bungalow

3

31

Sunny

SUNNYSID
E R

OAD

25

145.7m

Rose and Crown

Leegates

(PH)

Path

The Croft

20

Morningside

East View

The Orchard

Gladwell

33

Cottage

Limetrees

HOLYHEAD ROAD

Fairfields

Pottswood

Neilgherry

156.1m

Fernville

KETLEY BANK

27

310600

310650

310700

310750

310800

36
88
50

36
89
00

36
89
50

100m0m 20m 40m

1:1250

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2018. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



RevID Issue Name Change ID Date

01

02

03

06

07

PLANNING

Red LIne Boundry Amendment

Red LIne Boundry Amendment

BUNGALOW OPTION

PLANNING JAN2020

03/09/2019

03/10/2019

15/10/2019

15/11/2019

13/01/2020

www.garethhickman.co.uk

PLANNING JAN2020 A3

Scale 1:500@A3 Date 13/01/2020

Drawn A. Hudson

Proj. Ref Dwg No. Rev.GHA-19-623 PL.02 07

Checked G Hickman MCIAT

1.  Do not scale this drawing
2.  All dimensions to be checked on site and any discrepancies to be
reported to Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited immediately
3.  Any indication of services is approximate only and full investigation
should be carried out on site prior to commencing the works
4.  It is the responsibility of the contractor to comply with building
regulations whether or not wholly depicted on this drawing
5.  To be read in conjunction with any specialist Structural, Geotechnical or
Mechanical design by others.

This drawing and the works depicted are the copyright of
Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited and may not be
reproduced or amended except by written permission.  No
liability is accepted for amendments made by other persons.

NOTE

The Poplars, Lightmoor, Telford, Shropshire, TF4 3QN
t) 01952 590039

info@garethhickman.co.uk

Client

Proposed New Dwelling
Land adjacent Sunnyside Rd
Ketley

Block Plan

Project

Drawing

Oliver Hardy Homes LTD

Bungalow
Sunny

SUNNYSID
E R

OAD

145.7m

Leegates

Path

The
Croft

Morningside

Cottage

Neilgherry

Fernville

27
310600

310650

310700

1:500

0m 30m15m

N

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2018. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



RevID Issue Name Change ID Date

01

06

07

PLANNING

BUNGALOW OPTION

PLANNING JAN2020

03/09/2019

15/11/2019

13/01/2020

www.garethhickman.co.uk

PLANNING JAN2020 A1

Client

Proposed New Dwelling
Land adjacent Sunnyside Rd
Ketley

Proposed Plans & Elevations

Scale 1:50, 1:100@A1 Date 13/01/2020

By A. Hudson

Proj. Ref Dwg No. Rev.GHA-19-623 PL.04 07

Checked G Hickman MCIAT

1.  Do not scale this drawing
2.  All dimensions to be checked on site and any discrepancies to
be reported to Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited
immediately
3.  Any indication of services is approximate only and full
investigation should be carried out on site prior to commencing
the works
4.  It is the responsibility of the contractor to comply with
building regulations whether or not wholly depicted on this
drawing
5.  To be read in conjunction with any specialist Structural,
Geotechnical or Mechanical design by others.

This drawing and the works depicted are the copyright of
Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited and may not be
reproduced or amended except by written permission.  No
liability is accepted for amendments made by other persons.

NOTE

Project

Drawing

The Poplars, Lightmoor, Telford, Shropshire, TF4 3QN
t) 01952 590039

info@garethhickman.co.uk

Oliver Hardy Homes LTD

KITCHEN

LIVING
ROOM

HALL
BEDROOM

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1
BATHROOM

0. Ground Floor 1:50

E-02 East Elevation 1:100 E-03 South Elevation 1:100

E-04 West Elevation 1:100

1. First Floor 1:50

E-01 North Elevation 1:100

3D

Staffordshire mix plain clay tiles

Facing brickwork

uPVC windows
Composite front door

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



RevID Issue Name Change ID Date

05

06

07

PLANNING SECTION

BUNGALOW OPTION

PLANNING JAN2020

13/11/2019

15/11/2019

13/01/2020

www.garethhickman.co.uk

PLANNING JAN2020 A1

Client

Proposed New Dwelling
Land adjacent Sunnyside Rd
Ketley

Long Section

Scale 1:50@A1 Date 13/01/2020

By A. Hudson

Proj. Ref Dwg No. Rev.GHA-19-623 PL.06 07

Checked

1.  Do not scale this drawing
2.  All dimensions to be checked on site and any discrepancies to
be reported to Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited
immediately
3.  Any indication of services is approximate only and full
investigation should be carried out on site prior to commencing
the works
4.  It is the responsibility of the contractor to comply with
building regulations whether or not wholly depicted on this
drawing
5.  To be read in conjunction with any specialist Structural,
Geotechnical or Mechanical design by others.

This drawing and the works depicted are the copyright of
Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited and may not be
reproduced or amended except by written permission.  No
liability is accepted for amendments made by other persons.

NOTE

Project

Drawing

The Poplars, Lightmoor, Telford, Shropshire, TF4 3QN
t) 01952 590039

info@garethhickman.co.uk

Oliver Hardy Homes LTD

FFL +144.500

+148.300

+147.000

+148.150

+147.3501,8
00

1,9
00

1,3
00

Road Line

Road Line

Ridgeline of  The Croft +147.900 

11,730

TYPICAL LONG SECTION - 1:50

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



RevID Issue Name Change ID Date

01

06

07

PLANNING

BUNGALOW OPTION

PLANNING JAN2020

22/10/2019

15/11/2019

13/01/2020

www.garethhickman.co.uk

PLANNING JAN2020 A1

Client

Proposed New Dwelling
Land adjacent Sunnyside Rd
Ketley

Access Detail

Scale 1:100@A1 Date 13/01/2020

By A. Hudson

Proj. Ref Dwg No. Rev.GHA-19-623 PL.05 07

Checked

1.  Do not scale this drawing
2.  All dimensions to be checked on site and any discrepancies to
be reported to Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited
immediately
3.  Any indication of services is approximate only and full
investigation should be carried out on site prior to commencing
the works
4.  It is the responsibility of the contractor to comply with
building regulations whether or not wholly depicted on this
drawing
5.  To be read in conjunction with any specialist Structural,
Geotechnical or Mechanical design by others.

This drawing and the works depicted are the copyright of
Gareth Hickman Architectural Limited and may not be
reproduced or amended except by written permission.  No
liability is accepted for amendments made by other persons.

NOTE

Project

Drawing

The Poplars, Lightmoor, Telford, Shropshire, TF4 3QN
t) 01952 590039

info@garethhickman.co.uk

Oliver Hardy Homes LTD

1:50

0mm 5m

1:100

0mm 1m 2m 3m500mm

0mm 1m

1:20

500mm

1:500

0m 30m15m

100m0m 20m 40m

1:1250

Scales:-

S
D

S
D

H
D

H
D

144.250

144.250

144.850

144.900

145.100

145.200

144.400

144.250

145.600

145.250

145.750

149.300
149.300

149.300
148.150

147.600

147.000

148.150

147.350

Sunny

Neilgherry

PLO
T 1

PLO
T 2

145.7m

W
L 144.95

ET 146.60

ET 146.07

ET 145.13

ET 144.78

IC
CL 147.27

R
W

 146.62

R
W

 146.92
R

W
 147.37

D
K 145.83

D
K 145.98

D
K 146.25

FE 145.72

R
W

 144.78

R
W

 144.98

R
W

 145.25

R
W

 145.50

FFL:145.300

FFL:144.500

S7

S4

S8

S3

S2

S1

S7

S9

S4

FFL:
148.300

R
am

p

147.78

147.97

147.70

148.06

148.57

148.77

149.00

149.63

148.78

148.57

148.49

147.70

146.72

145.94

146.44

146.69

148.02

149.62

150.32

150.68

150.68

150.17

149.08

147.88
147.91

147.79

147.12

145.25

145.11

145.02

144.92

146.37

146.78

147.15

147.52

147.46

147.69
147.71

147.25

146.60
146.67

146.30

145.98
146.26

148.61

148.34

148.32 148.42

149.52

149.32

151.18

149.29

149.57

151.44

151.71

151.18

151.17

151.03

151.30

149.40

149.27

148.99

148.81

149.20

149.44

310650

W
L 144.95

ET 147.49

ET 146.60

ET 146.07

ET 145.63

ET 145.13

ET 144.78

IC
CL 147.27

R
W

 146.62

R
W

 146.92

R
W

 147.37

D
K 145.83

D
K 145.98

D
K 146.25

FE 145.72

R
W

 144.78

R
W

 144.98

R
W

 145.25

R
W

 145.50

Tel.

CL 144.94

IC
CL 145.13

TB 147.04

TB 146.85

TB 146.17

TB 145.53

KB 144.10

KB 144.31

KB 143.97

KB 144.04

KB 144.19
KB 144.35

R
W

 145.25

RW 145.46

KB 145.12

KB 145.33

KB 145.09

144.99

144.83

144.78

144.38

144.30

144.23

144.14

144.06

144.01 144.10

144.16

144.20

144.28

144.34

144.48

144.59

144.68

KB 145.20

144.48

144.78

RL 157.90m

RL 146.95m

STN 4

STN 5

Area of dense foliage

Edge of foliage

overgrown area

Mature hedge

310650N

310660N

310670N

310680N

310690N
151.50

151.25
151.00

150.75

150.50

150.25

150.00

149.75

149.50

149.25

149.00

148.75

148.50

148.25

148.00

147.75

147.50

147.25

147.00

146.75

146.50

146.25

146.00

146.850

146.600

143.850

148.150

147.150

146.850

EXTENT OF SUNNYSIDE OWNERSHIP
PLOTTED FROM LAND REGISTRY

SHADED RED AREA - 2.0 X 25M VISIBILITY SPLAY

ROAD EDGE

ADJACENT RETAINING WALL FOLLOWS
GROUND PROFILE AND THEREFORE DOES

NOT OBSTRUCT VISIBILITY

ACCESS CLARIFICATION / VISIBILITY SPLAY - 1:100

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Planning Applications for Determination
	6a TWC/2019/1031 - Site of Royston, 68 Rosecroft, 9 & 70 Park Road/St Leonards Road, Malinslee, Telford, Shrosphire
	1 - Proposed Elevations and Floor Plans (Plots 09-10)
	2 - Proposed Elevations and Floor Plans (Plots 29-30)
	3 - Proposed Elevations and Floor Plans (Plots 31-40)
	4 - Proposed Elevations and Floor Plans (Plots 37-38)
	5 - Proposed Street Scenes
	5 - Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	A4P



	6b TWC/2020/0087 - Site of former Rose and Crown PH, Sunnyside Road, Ketley Bank, Telford, Shropshire
	1 - Site Location Plan
	PL.01 Site Location Plan 

	2 - Block Plan
	PL.02 Block Plan

	3 - Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations
	PL.04 Proposed Plans & Elevations

	4 - Typical Long Section
	PL.06 Long Section

	5 - Proposed Access Details
	PL.05 Access Detail



